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Commissary Court of the Bishop of Winchester in Surrey 
The Bishop of Winchester appointed a Commissary to grant probate of wills 
in the county of Surrey. 

Registered wills, 1674-1857. 8 vols. 
Original wills, 1663-1857. 17 boxes. 
Original administrations, 1674-1858. 16 boxes 
Probate and administration act books, 1662-1858. 15 vols. 
Calendars of wills and administrations, 1662-1671, 1687-1704, 1727-30. 

4 vols. (calendars for other dates between 1672 and 1858 are an-
nexed to the probate and administration act books noted above). 

Court of the Archdeacon of Surrey 
The probate jurisdiction of this court covered the whole of Surrey, apart 
from the Peculiars, but its powers were inhibited, in theory, although ap-
parently not always in practice, for certain periods during each year. It 
had no power to grant administrations. For a useful short account of the 
Court of the Archdeacon the reader is referred to the Introduction to 
Surrey Wills, number XVII of the Surrey Record Society's publications, Decem-
ber 1922. 

Registered 'rVills, 1480-1821. 33 vols. 
Original wills, 1534-1857. 89 boxes. 
Probate act books, 1674-1858. 7 vols. 
Calendars of registered and unregistered wills, up to 1750. 10 vols. 

(calendars of wills, 1751-1858, are annexed to the probate act 
books noted above). 

Non-probate Records of both the Commissary Court and the Court of the 
Archdeacon are also in the Greater London Record Office, having been tran-
sferred there by the Registrar of the Diocese of Guildford. 

The following are the principal classes of records transferred (gaps in 
series have not been noted): 

Visitation books, 1667-1874, and other visitation records. 
Glebe terriers, c.1602-1902. c. 75 items. 
Muniment books, 1674-1927. 
Dissenters' meeting houses registration, 1741-1790, 1833,1852. 
Consecration books, 1819-1826. 
Consecration papers, 1800-1866. 
Office papers, 1628-1927. 
Omnibus facilities, orders in council, etc., 1857-1927. 
Marriage allegations, licences, bonds, etc., 1763-1910. 
Bishop's transcripts . 

(For most parishes the transcripts only survive from the early 
years of the 19th century, although for a few they begin in: the 18th 
century. A detailed list can be consulted at the Record Office). 

Diocese of Southwark. Records of this diocese, formed from the dioceses of 
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Winchester and Hochester in 1905, have been transferred to the Greater Lon-
don Record Office by the Diocesan Registrar. The following are the princi-
pal classes of records transferred (gaps in series have not been noted): 

Consecration papers, 1905-1963. 
Faculties, 1906-1957. 
Orders in council, 1905-1963. 
Visitation books, 1907-1951, and other visitation records. 
Office Papers, 1905-1969. 

(E. D. Mercer). 

September (No. 69) 

Old Woking: Romano'-British pottery (TQ 025565) 
Sherds of various tYP'es of Romano-British pottery, including a number of 
sizeable rims and bases,have been found by the Mayford History SOCiety on 
land belonging to the Pyrford Court Estate beside the Wey at Wokingpar'k 
Farm, about 14 mile upstream from the ruins of Woking Palace or Old Hall.' 
The site has been visited by Mr. HoIling and by Lady Hanworth. Limited 
trenching has been carried out and further investigation of the site will con-
tinue. 

(Nancy Cox). 

October (No. 70) 

Hall Place, Church Road,Mitcham (TQ 273685) 
The site of Hall Place, currently being developed by the Education Depart-
ment of the London Borough of Merton for a special school, has the distinc-
tion of being the oldest known continuously site in the parish of 
Mitcham, with a documented history of over 600 years. Recently completed 
excavations by the archaeological section of the Merton Historical Society 
have now provided evidence of buildings on the site in the 13th century and 
occupation in the 12th century. 
The limitatioris of time and labour available precluded an ambitious excava-
tion, but in two short seasons, and with excellent co-operation from the build-
ing contractors' representatives, foundations were examined which, apart 
from Some anomalies, correspond substantially with what is known of the 
ground plan of the Medieval and Tudor Hall Place demolished in 1867. Other 
parts of the site were investigated, but total stripping was out of the question. 
The site is tentatively identified with one of the two demesne farms of Whit-
ford recorded in the DO'mesday survey. It is clear that beneath the rubble 
of the late Victorian house on which the school is now being built there lies 
a complex of foundations dating back to the Middle Ages. The open hall it-
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self, and the chapel of 1348 lie to the west of the school, and although parti-
ally overlain by an access road, are relatively undisturbed by current build-
ing operations. The potential has been demonstrated convincingly, it remains 
to be seen whether or not the opportunity for further excavation will ever 
present itself. 
An interim report has been prepared. It is hoped that a final report will in 
due course be published in the Surrey Archaeological Collections. 

(E. N. Montague). 

Three Sites in Woodmansterne 

1. The Old Rectory (TQ 279597). This house, left unoccupied about three 
years ago, has now been partly gutted by vandals. Before it reached its pre-
sent sad state the writer had attempted twice to obtain permission to 'visit 
it, for inspection and photography, but was refused. Early this year, learning 
of its condition, he paid several Visits and photographed the frontage. The 
building does not seem to be older than the late 18th century, though the 
Victoria County History states that portions appear earlier. A large out-
house of flint and brick could certainly be. The site is destined for road 
building. 
2. Clockhouse Farm Estate (TQ 278601). This is now being developed for 
housing. Three Visits were paid here earlier this year, hoping to locate 
more of the active flint industry discovered by the gaspipe line excavations. 
Search was practically impossible over much of the ground as the surface 
had been strewn thickly with pebbles and grit after the very wet weather to 
enable the tractors to gain a hold on the thick clay. Only Victorian pottery 
and a little 18th century glazed ware were found. The modern farmhouse 
has no interesting f(i!ature, but it had been hoped to save and re-erect in the 
new estate the old clock which gave its name to the farm. Before 
it could be taken down it was destroyed by thieves trying to remove it. 
3. The Park (TQ 276601). The 10 feet high brick wall which divides the 
present Rectory grounds from the open space called The Park (the site of 
the late Medieval Shorts Place) is in much need of repair, though not in 
danger of falling. It has been claimed that bricks in it are dated 1690, but 
the only date that could be found after close inspection was 1780, clearly 
marked, preceded by the initials 'LL.' (John Lambert). After lengthy discus-
sions between Banstead Council and the Church authorities as to who was 
responsible for repairs, it was found that the Council was the owner of the 
wall. As local feeling is strong that the wall should be retained for its 
character and setting, the Council has asked the Church to pay half the esti-
mated cost of £300, but they can only offer £50. This was the position in 
December, 1969, and there the matter still remains, while the wall's condi-
tion slowly deteriorates and costs rise. 

(E. A. Baxter). 
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November (No. 71) 

Sefton Street, Putney (TQ 232760) 
The second phase of this excavation by the Wandsworth Historical Society 
is 'now completed and the findings prove last year's theory that there was 
Neolithic occupation on this site. 
A cutting has been investigated down to the top of the natural river alluvial 
soil, approximately 3 ft. 6 in. below the model"n ground surface. Old maps 
indicate that this land had always been under cultivation before the present 
houses were built, and our findings agreed with this. One group of pottery 
covers the periods Medieval to Modern, there are a few Romano-British pot-
sherds, and in the remaining ten Neolithic specimens three different fabric 
types can be recognised. 
More than 1, 300 worked flints have been recovered, of which about half are 
waste flakes. Owing to the absence of natural flint, i'arge pebbles from the 
river gravel formed most of the raw material. A wide variety of tools are 
represented and include both Single and composite sickle blades, skin 
scrapers of various types, knife blades, arrowheads, hammerstones, small 
chopping tools, and some very delicate micro-blades and fine toothed saws. 
There are also many snapped butts and points from prepared blades far in 
excess of the number of blades found, indicating transport of finished articles 
for use elsewhere in the neighbourhood. The site appears to have been a 
manufacturing area only, as no signs of actual settlement have been found, 
the only features being a natural drainage channel and some small post hole 
marks which could indicate a temporary lean-to shelter. 
A cursory examination of the artefacts seems to indicate a date not earlier 
than mid-Neolithic, at about 2,000 B.C. 
The Borough Council gave the Wandsworth H.S. the opportunity to carry out 
the excavation, and the Borough Architect's department gave help and inte-
rest.  

(S. E. Warren). 

December (No. 72) 

Romano-British Burial at Wonersh (TQ 038447) 
In May, 1970, a Romano-British burial urn was found about a foot below the 
surface, in digging a hole for a fence post alongside the drive to Holmecroft 
Nursery, Green Lane, Shamley Green, Wonersh. The urn is dark in colour ' 
and contained cremated bones. It has a very wide body rising from a nar-
row base, but the whole rim is missing, probably as the result of ancient 
cultivation, since the broken edges are much weathered. 
Mr. G. P. Brown, the owner of the nursery, has given the urn to Guildford 
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Museum. Nothing else was found near the site except a single Medieval 
sherd. 

(F. W. Holling.) 

Excavation at The Grove, Ewell (TQ 219624) 
Preliminary work on this site was carried out by permission of the Epsom 
and Ewell Education Committee, from August to October, 1970. 'A ditch, loca-
ted by Professor S. S. Frere in 1939 (reported in Surrey Archaelogical Col-
lections,XLVIII, 45-60), was sectioned and a junction between it and a smal-
ler gully was revealed. Pottery recovered included a wide range of Romano-
British wares, decorated samian, and shell-gritted wares. Daub and plaster 
fragments in the ditch section may be evidence for a possible dwelling in 
the vicinity. In an adjacent section, at the southern end of the site, a Meso-
lithic knapping surface was found, lying on the Thanet Sand. Further work 
is envisaged. 

(F. F. Pemberton). 

Merton Priory 
As a result of information passed to them, about dredging operations being 
carried out on the River Wandle, members of the Merton Historical. Society 
obtained permisSion from Messrs. Liberty & Co. to examine the river bank 
opposite their works. A provisional search disclosed certain types of 
masonry which might be connected with the Priory. Samples are being re-, 
covered for examination, and enquiry at the time also revealed the fact. 
that the river is to be restricted at the upper sluices in order to conserve 
water supplies (and facilitate cleaning), in which case it is hoped to be able 
to examine the river bed. 

(Merton H. S. Quarterly Bulletin). 

Excavation at Farnborough Hill (SU 875566) 
During the excavation (18th July-9th August) notified in Bulletin 67, two kiln 
foundations w,ere fully examined, and a third which is incomplete was partly 
excavated. The kilns had a flue at each end. One had an oval oven six feet ' 
six inches long, and the other two were probably about the same size, but 
the details of construction differed in each case. The kilns were close to a 
large dump of yellow clay. There were also dumps of pottery of the late 
sixteenth to early seventeenth century, some of it overlying a continuation 
of the medieval, ditch found in 1969. Medieval sherds were scattered in the 
lower levels and included fragments of lobed cups. Contemporary soil 
drains associated with the clay dump and an adjacent working floor were 
constructed of brick rubble in one case, and potsherds in the others. Many 
of the features extended beyond the area examined, and it is hoped to cori-
tinue excavation in 1971. The writer has a few copies of a fairly detailed 



196 Extracts from the Bulletins of 1970 

account with site plan of the excavation, available on request at Guildford 
Museum. 

(F. W. HoIling.) 

Medieval Pottery and Jetton from Compton Churchyard, (SU 954470) 
Finds from a small excavation in Compton Churchyard in 1930 (described 
in Surrey Archaeological Collections XXXIX, 149-50) have now been depos-
ited on permanent loan in Guildford Museum by the Rector and Church-
wardens of Compton. 
They consist chiefly of a Niirnberg jetton and part of a fourteenth century 
Surrey )Vare cooking pot ornamented with vertical thumbed strips. 
The finds were formerly displayed in the Church, but having been relegated 
to a cupboard, were in danger of being thrown away but for the timely action 
ot the Treasurer of the Parochial Church Council. This deposit prompts 
the suggestion that if members of the Society know of other public places 
where objects of interest have been retained for a long period, they could 
help to preserve such material by enquiring into its safe custody and encou-
raging its deposit in a local museum. 

(F. W. HoIling.) 




